
 

AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

55 West Williams Avenue Fallon, NV 
July 18, 2023 at 9:00 AM 

 

The Honorable City Council will meet in a regularly scheduled meeting on July 18, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. in 

the City Council Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada. 

Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. The Council may combine two or more agenda items for 

consideration. The Council may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item 

on the agenda at any time. Unless otherwise allowed by the City Council, public comments by an 

individual will be limited to three minutes. 

 

1. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 

 

2. Certification of Compliance with Posting Requirements 

 

3. Public Comments 

General in nature, not relative to any agenda items. No action may be taken on a matter raised 

under this item until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon 

which action will be taken. (For discussion only) 

 

4. Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes for June 20, 2023 (For 

possible action) 

 

5. Approval of Warrants (For possible action) 

A) Accounts Payable 

B) Payroll 

C) Customer Deposit 

 

6. Consideration of application by Ailyn Manzo for a mobile food vendor license for MM 

Foodtruck.  (For possible action) 

 

1



7. Consideration of application by Lucia Vidrio for a retail establishment liquor license for Vidrio 

Ventures LLC.  dba Antojitos to be located at 960 Auction Road, Suite D.  (For possible 

action) 

 

8. Consideration and possible approval of an amended Final Subdivision Map with updated civil 

improvement plans and amended Development Agreement for Phase 6 of Country Air Estates.  

(For possible action) 

 

9. Public meeting for discussion of possible state Community Development Block Grant 

Applications for fiscal year 2024-2025. (For discussion only) 

 

10. Fallon Police Department Monthly Report for June 2023 (For discussion only) 

 

11. Public Comments (For discussion only) 

 

12. Council and Staff Reports (For discussion only) 

 

13. Executive Session (Closed) 

 

Discuss Litigation Matters (For discussion only) (NRS 241 et.seq.) 

Negotiations with Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3 (For discussion only) 

Negotiations with Fallon Peace Officers Association (For discussion only) 

 

 

This agenda has been posted on or before 9:00 a.m. on July 13, 2023 at City Hall, District Court 

Building, Churchill County Office Complex, Churchill County Public Library and posted to the City’s 

website (https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/). 

Members of the public may request the supporting material for this meeting by contacting Elsie M. Lee, 

Deputy City Clerk, City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada, 775-423-

5104.  The supporting material for this meeting is also available to the public on the City’s website 

(https://fallonnevada.gov) and the State of Nevada public notice website (https://notice.nv.gov/). 

 

/s/ Elsie M. Lee 

 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable effort will be made to assist and 

accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring to attend the meeting.  Please call the City 

Clerk's Office at 775-423-5104 in advance so that arrangements may be conveniently made. 

2



June 20, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 1 

 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF FALLON 

55 West Williams Ave 

Fallon, Nevada 

June 20, 2023 

 

The Honorable City Council met in a regular meeting on the above date in the Council 

Chambers, 55 West Williams Avenue, Fallon, Nevada. 

 
Present: 
 

Mayor Ken Tedford 

Councilwoman Karla Kent 
Councilman Paul Harmon 

Chief of Staff Bob Erickson 
City Attorney Mike Mackedon 
Deputy City Attorney Sean Rowe 

Public Works Director Brian Byrd 
Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee 
Deputy City Clerk Michael O’Neill 

Chief Ron Wenger 
Engineer Derek Zimney 
Director of Tourism Jane Moon 

Emergency Manager Steve Endacott 
     

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Ken Tedford at 9:00 a.m.     

  

Mayor Ken Tedford led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Mayor Ken Tedford inquired if the agenda had been posted in compliance with NRS 

requirements. 

 

City Clerk Treasurer Sean Richardson advised that the agenda was posted in 
compliance with the NRS requirements. 
 

Public Comments 

 
Mayor Ken Tedford inquired if there were any public comments.  He noted that 

comments  are to be general in nature, not relative to any agenda items. No action may be taken 

on a matter raised under this item until the matter has been specifically included on an agenda 
as an item upon which action will be taken.   

Dr. Sue Segura greeted the Council.  I am the School-to-Works Coordinator for 

Churchill County School District.  I was just sharing with Ms. Kent, that we have 28 interns, 
through different businesses throughout Churchill County, and we’re really excited about this 
new program.  I am here to invite you to a great event, that we are hosting, to celebrate our 

High School.  It is August 10th, at Rafter 3C.  At a quarter to 6:00 p.m., the front doors will 
open.  I have 45 booths; all the colleges, trade schools, and businesses will be set up.  We are 

going to start in the big arena, our band, and our R.O.T.C program will be there.  Our High 

3

Item 4.



June 20, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 2 

 

 

School Principal Mr. Spencer will welcome everybody.  At 6:04 p.m., you’ll have a choice.  
We are going to have free food that night, hamburgers, hotdogs, chips, and water.  Our food is 

being paid by one of our business communities, New Millenium.  I have invited our County 
Commissioners, to help us flip burgers, and I would also like our City Council and Mayor to 
help, if you can come and flip burgers.  So, from 6:00 p.m.-8:00 p.m., our Career Fair will be 
open, Mr. Spencer will say, “If you want to eat first…” we are going to have 200 seats set up 

to eat first or mill through.  Our kids and our county are a partnership.  I have a firm belief, as 
a former high school principal, that the High School should be the hub of the community.  So, 
we’re starting to build that community.  How many want to help flip burgers?  Mr. Tedford? 

Mayor Tedford responded that he is unaware of what his schedule looks like for that 
day.   

Dr. Segura stated that was okay.  That is why I am here early, should I leave this here 
(flyer attached)?  Okay, we would love to have you.  If you are going to help us cook, be there 

at 5:15 p.m.  I will have the aprons, the Volunteer Fire Department is going to have a big BBQ, 
we are going to have a great event for the community.  I am expecting to feed 1,000 people that 
night.  That’s my goal.  It’s a Thursday night.  Anybody that plays a sport in Churchill County 
will have their jerseys on, they’re going to be on the ground floor.  We are going to have all 

our clubs, all our CTE programs.  It is a night to celebrate the community and get involved with 
our High School.  Thank you. 

The Mayor thanked Dr. Segura.  Are there any other public comments? 

No further comments were noted.   

 

Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes for May 30, 2023. 

 

Councilman Harmon motioned to approve with no corrections or additions the Council 

Meeting Minutes for May 30, 2023; seconded by Councilwoman Kent and approved with a 2-0 

vote by the Council.  

Mayor Tedford commented that Councilwoman Frost is absent for this meeting.    
 

Approval of Warrants 

 

A) Accounts Payable 
B) Payroll 

C) Customer Deposit 

 

Councilwoman Kent motioned to approve the accounts payable, payroll and customer 

deposit warrants; seconded by Councilman Harmon and approved with a 2-0 vote by the 

Council.      

 

 Consideration of application by Lynn Lachine for a mobile food vendor license for 

the Pony Espresso. 

 

Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee stated that Lynn Lachine, owner of the Pony Espresso has 
made an application for a mobile food vendor license for the Pony Espresso.  A mobile food 

vendor license is a privileged license that allows the licensee to sell food from a motor vehicle, 
or other type of food service conveyance, for human consumption and which is used to sell 
and dispense food or beverages to customers.  This application has been reviewed by Deputy 

City Attorney Trent deBraga, Chief Ron Wenger, Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee, and City 

4

Item 4.



June 20, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 3 

 

 

Engineer Derek Zimney, and has been recommended for approval. 
Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any comments or questions from the Council. 

Paul Harmon inquired about the work being done out of a GMC pickup.  Is the GMC 
pickup going to be towing a trailer?   

Lynn Lachine stated that the trailer is towed with a GMC pickup truck.  It is a 12-foot 
concession trailer.  Everything is inside the trailer, and I am sure that I wrote it down wrong. 

Paul Harmon inquired if this information needs to be added to the permit.   
Deputy City Clerk Elsie stated that they have the information for the trailer’s 

registration.  It is just not included in the packet. 

Mayor Tedford reiterated that we have the information but that it is just not included in 
the packet.  Any further comments from Council or the public?   
      No further comments were noted. 

Councilwoman Kent motioned to approve the application by Lynn Lachine for a mobile 

food vendor license for the Pony Espresso; seconded by Councilman Harmon and approved 

with a 2-0 vote by the Council.      

 
Consideration of application by Kimberly Fairbanks for a mobile food vendor 

license for Kim’s Kool Treats.  

 

Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee stated that Kimberly Fairbanks, owner of Kim’s Kool 
Treats has made an application for a mobile food vendor license for Kim’s Kool Treats.  A 
mobile food vendor license is a privileged license that allows the licensee to sell food from a 

motor vehicle, or other type of food service conveyance, for human consumption and which 
is used to sell and dispense food or beverages to customers.  This application has been 
reviewed by Deputy City Attorney Trent deBraga, Chief Ron Wenger, Deputy City Clerk 
Elsie Lee, and City Engineer Derek Zimney, and has been recommended for approval. 

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any comments or questions from the Council. 
Councilwoman Kent stated that she has seen Kim’s Kool Treats at events.  I was 

wondering if you only operate at a fixed location. 

Kimberly Fairbanks stated that she can only operate at a fixed location because of the 
soft serve ice cream.  Once I’m set up, I have to sit there until I drain the machines.  Plus, the 
generator is on the back of my truck, so we have to hook those up to the trailer.  There is no 
way for me to drive around.  So, once I’m set, I’m set there until I’m done. 

Councilwoman Kent stated that she understood.  
Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any further comments or questions from the 

Council or public. 

      No further comments were noted. 

Councilman Harmon motioned to approve the application by Kimberly Fairbanks for a 

mobile food vendor license for Kim’s Kool Treats; seconded by Councilwoman Kent and 
approved with a 2-0 vote by the Council.   

 

Fallon Police Department Monthly Report for May 2023. 

 
Chief Ron Wenger presented the May monthly report.  The report will compare the 2023 

crime, traffic stop, and traffic accidents statistics to May 2022.  He added that the incidents 
were elevated, with respect to the same timeframe last year.  Total calls-for-service this month 
were up by 173, with 793 total calls-for-service compared to 620 last year. 

 Crime Summary: 5 total Domestic battery; resulted in 3 – adult arrest, 1 – juvenile 

5

Item 4.



June 20, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 4 

 

 

arrest, and 1 case that is still under investigation.   14 Disorderly Conducts; 8 – occurred 
at schools, 1 – occurred at a resident, 1 – occurred at bars/casinos, 1 - occurred at the 

hospital, and 3 - occurred in public parks.  This resulted in 11 juvenile arrests, 1 adult 
arrest, 4 warnings, and 1 case involving a juvenile that is still under investigation. 1 
sex offense reported involving a juvenile. 

 Theft calls:  11 total thefts of various items, 1 was from a private resident. 

 Arrest Summary: 6 – DUI arrests.  52 total arrests were made.  24 – juvenile arrests; 

24 adults; 4 – misdemeanor citations issued in lieu of arrest.    

 Moving Citations/Traffic Warnings: 113 traffic stops – 17 citations and 96 warnings. 

 Public Property Accidents: 7 – private property traffic accidents, and 16 – public 

property accidents. 

 Animal Shelter Services: Total 152; Churchill County – 73; City – 77; 2 – Fallon 

Paiute-Shoshone Tribe. 

 Volunteers in Police Services: Contributed 136 hours to the agency through Helping 

Hands and other assignments.   

 Various training courses were provided to sworn-in and non-sworn-in officers.  

 No requests were made through the Citizen Assistance Program. 

 Police offers participated in several various public relations events. 

 The Citizen Survey results were positive. 

 Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any further comments or questions. 
 Councilwoman Kent inquired on the juvenile misdemeanors that were reported.  Do you 

think this number is elevated because there has been a change at the school, since these issues 
now go through the Police Department? 
 Chief Wenger stated that they are elevated due to it being the last month of school.  We 

typically see a rise in juvenile arrests for Disorderly Conduct in the last month of school. 
 Councilwoman Kent inquired if the school has made a change with their policy.  Did 
the school change the policy of the PD’s involvement? 
 Chief Wenger stated that the Police Department used to get involved in school incidents.  

I think that we are seeing more incidents with Disorderly Conduct in the schools.   
 Councilman Harmon inquired about the Indoctrination Training at NAS.  What does 
this training involve with our officers? 

 Chief Wenger stated that these training courses include the local and state laws that will 
directly affect them when moving from a different state to Nevada.  This includes the drinking 
laws, weapons laws, and gambling laws.  These laws will affect these young sailors when they 
come in.  We also advise them of things to do in the area, Grimes Point, Sand Mountain, Top 

Gun Raceway, Rattlesnake Raceway.  We will give them a lot of information on things to do 
in the area. 
 Councilman Harmon stated that this is a great service that we offer. 

 Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any further questions or comments.    
No further comments were noted.  

 

Public Comments 

 
Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any public comments. 

No comments were noted.   

 

 

 

6

Item 4.



June 20, 2023 Fallon City Council Meeting 5 

 

 

Council and Staff Reports       
 

Mayor Tedford inquired if there were any Council or staff reports. 

No reports were noted. 

 

Executive Session       
 
Mayor Tedford tabled the executive session, as it was not needed at this time. 

 

Adjournment 

 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Tedford adjourned 

the meeting at 9:21 a.m.       

           
________________________________ 

          Mayor Ken Tedford  

 

Attest:___________________________________ 

 Sean C. Richardson, City Clerk-Treasurer 

7

Item 4.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 11, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: July 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration of application by Ailyn Manzo for a mobile food vendor 

license for MM Foodtruck.  (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve application and to issue a mobile food vendor 

license to Ailyn Manzo for MM Foodtruck. 

DISCUSSION:  Ailyn Manzo, owner of MM Foodtruck has made an application for a mobile food 

vendor license for MM Foodtruck.  A mobile food vendor license is a privileged license that allows the 

licensee to sell food from a motor vehicle, or other type of food service conveyance, for human 

consumption and which is used to sell and dispense food or beverages to customers.  

The application has been reviewed by Deputy City Attorney Trent deBraga, City Engineer Derek 

Zimney, Chief Ron Wenger, and Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee and has been recommended for approval.     

FISCAL IMPACT: Annual mobile food vendor license fee revenue.     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

8

Item 6.



9

Item 6.



10

Item 6.



11

Item 6.



12

Item 6.



13

Item 6.



14

Item 6.



15

Item 6.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 10, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: July 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Consideration of application by Lucia Vidrio for a retail establishment 

liquor license for Vidrio Ventures LLC.  dba Antojitos to be located at 

960 Auction Road, Suite D.  (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

(X) Formal Action/Motion  Other – Discussion Only 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve application and to issue a retail establishment 

liquor license to Lucia Vidrio for a retail establishment liquor license for Vidrio Ventures, LLC dba 

Antojitos to be located at 960 Auction Road, Suite D. 

 

DISCUSSION: Lucia Vidrio, owner of Vidrio Ventures LLC dba Antojitos has made application for a 

retail and drinking establishment liquor license for Vidrio Ventures LLC dba Antojitos at 3960 Auction 

Road, Suite D.  A retail liquor license is a privileged license that allows the licensee to sell alcoholic 

beverages from a fixed and definite place of business for consumption off of the premises only. 

 

The application has been reviewed by Deputy City Attorney Trent deBraga, City Engineer Derek 

Zimney, Chief Ron Wenger, and Deputy City Clerk Elsie Lee and has been recommended for approval.     

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Annual retail establishment liquor license fee revenue.     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Elsie Lee, Deputy City Clerk 

 

16

Item 7.



17

Item 7.



18

Item 7.



19

Item 7.



20

Item 7.



21

Item 7.



22

Item 7.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 10, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: July 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Derek Zimney, City Engineer 

AGENDA ITEM 

TITLE: 

Consideration and possible approval of an amended Final Subdivision Map 

with updated civil improvement plans and amended Development 

Agreement for Phase 6 of Country Air Estates.  (For possible action) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

☐ Resolution ☐ Ordinance 

☒ Formal Action/Motion ☐ Other – Discussion Only 

 

RECOMMENDED COUNCIL ACTION: Motion to approve an amended Final Subdivision Map with 

updated civil improvement plans and amended Development Agreement for Phase 6 of Country Air 

Estates. 

 

DISCUSSION: The approval of the amended map would allow for the construction of fourteen (14) new 

single-family lots, and one lot to be dedicated to the City of Fallon for storm water infiltration.  

On October 4, 2022, the City Council approved a Final Subdivision Map and Development Agreement 

for Phase 6 of Country Air Estates.Following the approval of the Final Subdivision Map and 

Development Agreement for Phase 6 of Country Air Estates, Rockhound Investments, LLC engaged a 

different engineer to update its civil improvement plans previously submitted and approved. Rockhound 

Investments, LLC would now like to move forward with constructing Phase 6 of the County Air Estates 

using the same Final Map previously approved but incorporating the updated civil improvements plans. 

The major changes to the civil improvements are related to the grading. 

Furthermore, the amended Development Agreement reflects the new master hydrology report prepared 

by Civil Engineering Consultants and adds provisions to supersede the previously approved October 4, 

2022, Development Agreement  

The amended Final Subdivision Map with updated civil improvements and  has been reviewed by Derek 

Zimney - City Engineer, Brian Byrd – Public Works Director , Bob Erickson – Chief of Staff, Sean 

Rowe- Deputy City Attorney, and Trent deBraga – Deputy City Attorney. The proposed Final 

23

Item 8.



Subdivision Map and civil improvement plans have been approved by the Nevada Department of 

Environmental Protection and Nevada Division of Water Resources.  

FISCAL IMPACT: 14 units of Water Rights Fees ($42,000) to be paid before map is recorded.  

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

PREPARED BY: Derek Zimney, City Engineer 

24

Item 8.



25

Item 8.



26

Item 8.



27

Item 8.



28

Item 8.



29

Item 8.



30

Item 8.



31

Item 8.



32

Item 8.



33

Item 8.



34

Item 8.



35

Item 8.



36

Item 8.



37

Item 8.



38

Item 8.



39

Item 8.



40

Item 8.



41

Item 8.



THIS AGREEMENT made this ____ day of ___________________, 2023, by and between the 
CITY OF FALLON, a subdivision of the State of Nevada, hereinafter referred to as "Fallon" 
and Rockhound Investments, LLC., a Nevada limited liability company hereinafter referred 
to as "Rockhound, LLC", whereby the parties recite, covenant and agree as follows:  

 
1. RECITALS 

 

A. Fallon and Rockhound, LLC previously entered into a development agreement dated 
October 4, 2022. 
 

B. That following the October 4, 2022, development agreement, Rockhound LLC has 
updated its civil improvement plans to its Final Map of the Country Air Subdivision 
Phase 6. 
 
 

C. Due to the civil improvement plan changes, the City of Fallon and Rockhound LLC 
desire to enter into the following agreement and upon the following terms which 
shall supersede the October 4, 2022, development agreement and control the 
parties’ obligations.   

D. Fallon is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada organized as a City pursuant 
to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 266 (General Law for Incorporation of Cities 
and Towns); 

E. Fallon has enacted ordinances that establish minimum standards of design and 
improvement for subdivisions in the incorporated area of the City at Title 20 -
Subdivisions as authorized by Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 278, (Planning and 
Zoning);  

F. Fallon, recognizing the importance of entering into agreements with owners of 
property that have made significant financial commitments for the development of 
property within its corporate limits, has enacted Section 20.26.010 through 
20.26.012 of Title 20 of the Ordinances of Fallon which authorizes Fallon to enter 
into development agreements with the owners of property that may include specific 
covenants that depart from the general subdivision development, design, and 
improvement standards set forth in Title 20 of the Fallon Municipal Code, hereafter 
("FMC").  

G. Rockhound, LLC owns all that certain lot, piece or parcel of land situate in the 
County of Churchill, State of Nevada, described as follows:  

    Parcel D1 of the Parcel Map for Joe Jr. and Joann L. Serpa, Co-Trustees of the Joe Jr. 
  and Joann L. Serpa Family Trust Agreement dated 10/26/1993 recorded January 
  31, 2005 under Document No. 367906, Official Records, Churchill County, Nevada.  

42

Item 8.



H. A Tentative Map for the Country Air Subdivision Phases 6-8 was approved by the 
Fallon City Council on December 20, 2021; signed by the Mayor of the City of Fallon, 
Ken Tedford, Jr. and Deputy City Clerk for the City of Fallon, Elsie Lee.  

I. No subdivision improvements have been completed for the lots owned by 
Rockhound, LLC within the Country Air Subdivision Phases 6-8 as required to 
develop these parcels by FMC Title 20 and Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 278;  

J. Rockhound, LLC has presented a Final Map of the Country Air Subdivision Phase 6 
for approval by the Fallon City Council. Phase 6 of said subdivision consists of 15 
total lots upon which Rockhound, LLC intends to develop 14 residential lots and one 
lot to be developed as a retention basin and upon completion conveyed to the City. 

K. Rockhound, LLC intends to use good faith and commercially reasonable efforts to 
develop the lots prior to the expiration of the term of this Agreement. Should 
Rockhound, LLC, sell any of the lots prior to their development, any successor in 
interest is hereby incorporated into all references to Rockhound, LLC in the 
covenants contained below.  

L. Fallon and Rockhound, LLC desire to enter into a development agreement (hereafter 
"Agreement") as authorized by Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 278 Section 
278.02598 and FMC Sections 20.26.010 through 20.26.012 to provide for the future 
construction and completion for all subdivision improvements for the 14 lots within 
Country Air Subdivision.  

NOW THEREFORE, Fallon and Rockhound, LLC agree as follows:  
 
1. That this Agreement shall supersede the development agreement previously 

entered into by Fallon and Rockhound, LLC and dated October 4, 2022. 

2. Rockhound, LLC agrees to install and construct at its expense all subdivision 
improvements for the 15 lots (hereafter collectively “Improvements”) as depicted 
on the Final Map for the Country Air Phase 6 Subdivision and incorporated herein 
by reference. Among the Improvements to be constructed are the following: water 
distribution system, sewer infrastructure, storm drain and storm water collection 
infrastructure, electrical infrastructure, importing of suitable materials for grading, 
roadway, curb, gutter, sidewalk, pedestrian ramps, streetlights and signage.  

3. Rockhound, LLC shall, as a requirement to subdivide Phase 6, install a sewer lift 
station and stormwater retention basin within the boundaries of Phase 6 each of 
which shall be of sufficient capacity to serve the Country Air Subdivisions Phases 6-
8. 

4. Rockhound, LLC agrees to complete the Improvements in a workman-like manner, 
according to Nevada Orange Book standards for soils, aggregates, concrete and 
asphalt and to provide Fallon with testing of such by Rockhound, LLC and as 
depicted on the Country Air Phase 6 Final Map, the Westex Geotechnical Report 

43

Item 8.



dated April 24, 2021, and Master Hydrology Report prepared by Civil Engineering 
Consultants dated April 14, 2023. 

5. Rockhound, LLC agrees to complete the Improvements as described in paragraph 2 
above and, as hereinafter set forth, within twelve (12) months of the effective date 
of this Agreement, unless extended by the Fallon City Council at a properly 
scheduled official meeting of the Fallon City Council.  

6. Rockhound, LLC agrees that no individual lot (s) will be sold or offered for sale as 
residential units or individually pledged as collateral for any purpose until 
Rockhound, LLC, or its successors in interest, has completed the Improvements in 
the manner set forth herein.  

7. Fallon agrees that Rockhound, LLC may commence construction of homes within 
Phase 6 of the subdivision upon proper rough grading of the 15 lots; Rockhound, 
LLC agrees that homes will not receive certificates of occupancy until all 
Improvements are completed and accepted by City of Fallon. 

8. Fallon agrees that Rockhound, LLC may submit a letter of credit in leu of a cash bond 
guaranteeing the completion of the Improvements herein. The letter of credit shall 
be in the amount of $1,280,606.00 and in a form and subject to terms approved by 
the City of Fallon.  

9. As individual Improvements are completed and accepted by Fallon, Rockhound, LLC 
may request a release from its line of credit of the value of the completed 
improvements as established by the City of Fallon. 

10. Fallon agrees to not require a warranty bond for the Improvements constructed 
pursuant to this Agreement; however, Rockhound, LLC agrees to warrant the 
Improvements for a period of one year following their acceptance by the City of 
Fallon.  

11. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to prohibit the Fallon City Council 
from adopting new ordinances, resolutions or regulations applicable to land subject 
to this Agreement, which do not conflict with those ordinances, resolutions and 
regulations in effect at the time this Agreement becomes effective, except that any 
subsequent action by the Fallon City Council must not prevent the development of 
the 14 lots as set forth in this Agreement. 

12. Fallon shall certify that the Improvements required by this Agreement have been 
completed. Final approval shall be by the Fallon City Council and said approval shall 
be memorialized a in writing, recorded in the Office of the Churchill County 
Recorder and a Declaration signed by the Mayor of Fallon, that the terms of this 
Agreement have been fulfilled. 

44

Item 8.



13. This Agreement shall be recorded in the Office of the Churchill County Recorder 
shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their 
respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

14. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with and governed in all respects 
by the laws of the State of Nevada. 

15. The exclusive venue for any action brought to interpret or enforce the terns of this 
Agreement shall be the Tenth Judicial District Court in Churchill County. 

16. In the event an action is brought to interpret or enforce this Agreement, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover costs and reasonable attorney's fees.  

17. Each of the signatories hereto warrants and represents that it is competent and 
authorized to enter into this Agreement.  

18. If any provision or any part of any provision of this Agreement is for any reason held 
to be invalid, unenforceable, or contrary to public policy, law, statute and/or 
ordinance, then the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby and 
shall remain valid and fully enforceable.  

18. The effective date of this Agreement is the date the Fallon City Council shall approve 
it and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk/Treasurer to sign on behalf of Fallon.  

 

APPROVED by vote of Fallon City Council, dated this. _____day of ______________, 2023. 
 
 
 
           
Ken Tedford     Kenneth R. Gearhart 
MAYOR     Rockhound Investments, LLC 

45

Item 8.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 7, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: July 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Derek Zimney, City Engineer 

AGENDA ITEM 

TITLE: 

Public meeting for discussion of possible state Community Development 

Block Grant Applications for fiscal year 2024-2025. (For discussion only) 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

☐ Resolution ☐ Ordinance 

☐ Formal Action/Motion ☒ Other – Discussion Only 

 

 

DISCUSSION:. The purpose of this public meeting is to provide information about the CDBG program, 

past projects that have been funded in the City of Fallon, how to apply, eligibility requirements, how and 

where funds can be used, and to give citizens an opportunity to make their comments known regarding 

what types of eligible activities the City of Fallon should apply for under the State CDBG program.  A 

second public hearing will be held in September 2023 in order to discuss proposed projects submitted to 

date.  A final hearing will be held prior to the end of February 2024 to discuss, approve and rank 

applications prior to submittal to the State. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A     

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Derek Zimney, City Engineer 

46

Item 9.



 

47

Item 9.



 

CITY OF FALLON 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION  
 

DATE SUBMITTED: July 11, 2023 

AGENDA DATE: July 18, 2023 

TO: The Honorable City Council 

FROM: Ronald D. Wenger, Chief of Police 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Fallon Police Department Monthly Report for June 2023 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED: 

 Resolution  Ordinance 

 Formal Action/Motion (X) Other – Discussion Only 

 

POSSIBLE COUNCIL ACTION: For Review Only 

 

DISCUSSION: (Attachment, if necessary) 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

 

FUNDING SOURCE: N/A.        

 

PREPARED BY: Emily Rasmussen 

 

PRESENTED TO COUNCIL BY: Chief Ron Wenger 

48

Item 10.



49

Item 10.



50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



52

Item 10.



53

Item 10.



54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



56

Item 10.



57

Item 10.



58

Item 10.


	Top
	Item 4.	Consideration and possible approval of Council Meeting Minutes 6-20-23 (For possible approval)
	6-20-23 Council (waiting for approval)

	Item 6.	MM Foodtruck 7-18-23
	MM Foodtruck 7-18-23
	MM Foodtruck_Redacted

	Item 7.	Vidrio Ventures Liquor License 7-18
	Liquor license  Vidrio Ventures  7-18-23
	Vidrio Ventures_Redacted

	Item 8.	Country Air 7-18-23
	Agenda item request Country Air 7.18.23
	Country Air Phase 6 Civil Improvement Plans Final
	Country Phase 6 Final Map
	Gearhardt Dev Agreement- REVISED July 12, 2023

	Item 9.	cdbg public hearing 7-18-23
	Agenda Item Request CDBG Public Hearing 1 - 7.18.23
	LMI 2023

	Item 10.	PD Report June 23
	Template Monthly PD Report
	June 2023 PD Report

	Bottom

